
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

SPECIAL STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 26th September, 2024, 7.00 pm - George Meehan House 
294 High Road Wood Green N22 8JZ (watch the live meeting Here) 
 
 
Councillors: Barbara Blake, Erdal Dogan, Felicia Opoku, Ibrahim Ali (Chair), 
Scott Emery and Simmons-Safo 
 
  
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Members of the public 
participating in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, 
making oral protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, 
recorded or reported on.  By entering the ‘meeting room’, you are consenting 
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
To receive any apologies for absence.  
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
It being a special meeting the Chair will only consider the admission of any 
late item of urgent business in relation to the items shown in the summons in 
accordance with Part Four Section B 17 of the constitution. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDE4OWI0ZGEtY2UwOS00ZWVjLWI3NDQtMTVmYTQ0ODFmMGUx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2223a26c29-9165-4501-876b-873e129c6319%22%7d


 

(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. DISPENSATION IN RELATION TO MEMBERSHIP OF NORTH LONDON 
WASTE AUTHORITY (NLWA)  (PAGES 1 - 6) 
 
 

 
Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2929 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: Ayshe.Simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Assistant Director of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Wednesday, 18 September 2024 
 



 

Page 1 of 5  

 
 

Report for:  Standards Committee 26 September 2024 
 
 
Title: Dispensation in relation to membership of North London Waste 

Authority (NLWA) 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Fiona Alderman Assistant Director of Legal & Governance 

(Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Lead Officer: Fiona Alderman Assistant Director of Legal & Governance 

(Monitoring Officer) 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/ N/A 
Non Key Decision:  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 The North London Waste Authority (“NLWA”) is the statutory joint waste disposal 

authority for north London and as such is responsible for the disposal of waste 
collected by seven north London boroughs, including the London Borough of 
Haringey. 

1.2 NLWA is the sole shareholder in LondonEnergy Ltd. It is NLWA practice to 
appoint the Authority Chair and two Vice-Chairs as non-executive members of 
LEL’s board.   

1.3 Councillor Mike Hakata, Cabinet Member for Climate Action, Environment and 
Transport and Councillor Dana Carlin, Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate Services were appointed as the Council’s representatives on NLWA 
at the Annual Council meeting on 20 May 2024. Councillor Hakata has also been 
appointed as Vice-Chair of NLWA and by LEL to act as a director of that 
company. 

1.4  This report considers granting Councillor Hakata and Councillor Carlin a 
dispensation for their membership of NLWA, and to Councillor Hakata in respect 
of his directorship of LEL, to enable them to participate in debates and votes on 
matters relating to NLWA and LEL respectively.  

  

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction  
          

N/A 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 of 5  

3. Recommendations  
 

3.1  The Standards Committee is asked to consider the contents of this report and: 
 
(a) determine whether to grant a dispensation to Councillor Hakata and 

Councillor Carlin to allow them to participate in debates and votes on matters 
relating to NLWA business: waste disposal, energy from waste, waste 
facilities, waste transfer stations, reuse and recycling and any other waste 
related issues until Councillor Hakata and Councillor Carlin cease to be a 
member of NLWA; and 
 

(b) determine whether to grant a dispensation to Councillor Hakata to allow them to 
participate in debates and votes on matters relating to LEL business: waste 
disposal, energy from waste, waste facilities, waste transfer stations, reuse and 
recycling and any other waste related issues until Councillor Hakata ceases to 
be a director of LondonEnergy Ltd 
 

(c) provided in both cases that Members consider that granting the dispensation is 
in the interests of persons living in the authority's area. 

 
3.2 Subject to approval of 3.1 above, delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to 

prepare the dispensation for publication on the Council’s website.  
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

4.1 Under the Council’s Constition, the Standards Committee is responsible for 
granting dispensations to councillors and co-opted members from requirements 
relating to interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
5. Alternative options considered 

 
5.1 To not grant a dispensation. Where a dispensation is not granted, a councillor 

present at a meeting with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest 
in any matter to be considered, or being considered at the meeting may not 
participate in any discussion nor vote on the matter and must withdraw from the 
room. 

 
6. Background 

 
6.1 NLWA is established as a statutory joint waste disposal authority under Schedule 

1 to the Waste Regulation and Disposal (Authorities) Order 1985. The NWLA’s 
main waste disposal functions are set out in section 51 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990. The Constituent London Borough Councils are Barnet, 
Camden, Enfield, Hackney, Haringey, Islington and Waltham Forest. 

6.2 NLWA is comprised of 14 councillors, with each constituent borough appointing 
two councillors. The appointments are made annually at the constituent 
borough’s annual council meeting. Councillor Mike Hakata, Cabinet Member for 
Climate Action, Environment and Transport and Councillor Dana Carlin, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Corporate Services were appointed as the Council’s 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 5  

representatives on NLWA at the Annual Council meeting on 20 May 2024. 
Councillor Hakata has subsequently been appointed as a Vice-Chair of NLWA. 

6.3 NLWA owns and controls LondonEnergy Limited (“LEL”), a company that 
provides waste management services to NLWA, the constituent authorities and 
other bodies. LEL operates an energy from waste facility and other waste facilities 
at the Edmonton EcoPark in Enfield, and waste transfer stations and reuse and 
recycling centres in the north London area. NLWA has a waste services contract 
with LEL for disposal of the waste delivered by the constituent boroughs.  

6.4 Following a review to re-establish the necessary alignment between LEL and the 
NLWA’s needs, changes were made to the composition and membership of the 
LEL board and it now comprises of: 

6.4.1 Executive directors (Managing Director, Finance Director, and 
Operations Director); 

6.4.2 Non-executive directors – the company’s Chair, and non-execs with the 
following expertise – finance, health and safety, waste management, 
ERF plants. 

6.4.3 Three NLWA Members – the Chair and Vice Chairs; 

6.4.4 Four officers – the MD of NLWA, two directors from constituent 
boroughs, and the NLWA Head of Legal and Governance. 

6.5 As a result of his appointment as Vice-Chair of NLWA, Councillor Hakata has 
been appointed by LEL to act as a director of that company. Should Councillor 
Hakata receive remuneration as compensation for the time given to undertaking 
this role, this payment will amount to a disclosable pecuniary interest (“DPI”) 
under the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct and pursuant to section 31 
Localism Act 2011. That interest would need to be declared and registered. 

6.6 Under the Members’ Code of Conduct, where Councillor Hakata does not receive 
payment for his position as director of LEL, that position will not amount to a DPI 
but will be a personal interest which may be a prejudicial interest in circumstances 
where a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would 
reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the judgment of the 
public interest.  

6.7 Similarly, Councillor Hakata’s and Councillor Carlin’s membership of NLWA will 
constitute a personal interest which may be a prejudicial interest in the 
circumstances outlined above. 

6.8 In either case, the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires that where a 
Member is present at a meeting and they have a DPI or a prejudicial interest in 
any matter to be considered, or being considered at the meeting, they may not 
participate in any discussion nor vote on the matter and must withdraw from the 
room, unless they have obtained a dispensation from the Standard’s Committee.  

6.9 Under the Code, a Member with a prejudicial interest may attend a meeting but 
only for the purposes of making representations, answering questions or giving 

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 5  

evidence in relation to the matter, provided that the meeting is also open to the 
public to attend for the same purposes.  

6.10 Section 33 Localism Act 2011 provides circumstances where it may be 
appropriate to grant a dispensation: 

A relevant authority may grant a dispensation under this section only if, 
after having had regard to all relevant circumstances, the authority— 

(a) considers that without the dispensation the number of persons 
prohibited by section 31(4) from participating in any particular 
business would be so great a proportion of the body transacting the 
business as to impede the transaction of the business, 

(b) considers that without the dispensation the representation of 
different political groups on the body transacting any particular 
business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any 
vote relating to the business, 

(c) considers that granting the dispensation is in the interests of 
persons living in the authority's area, 

(d) if it is an authority to which Part 1A of the Local Government Act 
2000 applies and is operating executive arrangements, considers 
that without the dispensation each member of the authority's 
executive would be prohibited by section 31(4) from participating in 
any particular business to be transacted by the authority's 
executive, or 

(e) considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

6.11 Regarding the dispensation to Councillor Hakata and Councillor Carlin in respect 
of their membership of NLWA, the Standards Committee may consider that 
granting the requested dispensation[s] is  in the interests of persons living in the 
Council’s area because it may assist in closer alignment between the aims of 
NLWA and of the Council as a constituent borough.  Indeed it is not uncommon 
for a standard dispensation to apply to members in respect of interests arising 
from an appointment by the authority to outside bodies, in this case the 
appointment to NLWA. 

6.12 Regarding the dispensation to Cllr Hakata in respect of his position as a director 
of LEL, the Standards Committee may consider that granting the requested 
dispensation is  in the interests of persons living in the Council’s area because it 
may assist in closer alignment between the functions and services provided by 
LEL and the aims of NLWA and its’ constituent boroughs, including Haringey. 

6.13 A dispensation granted to a Member is published on the Council’s website and 
can last up to 4 years. 

6.14 It should be noted that the effect of a dispensation is not to waive an actual or 
perceived conflict of interest nor to waive the common law position in respect of 
bias and predetermination in decision-making. In such cases, Members should 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer as to how to proceed.  

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 5  

 
7. Contribution to the Corporate Delivery Plan 2024-2026 High level Strategic 

outcomes 
 

7.1 Ensuring good governance within the Council and by councillors supports all 
strategic priorities. 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance ( procurement), Head of 
Legal and Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance 
 

8.1  There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in 
this report.  
 
Legal 

 
8.2 This is a report of the Assistant Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring 

Officer). Their comments are included in the body of this report 
 
Equality 

 
8.3 There are no direct equalities implications arising from the recommendations in 

this report. 
 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
N/A 
 

10. Background Papers  
 

The Council Constitution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Dispensation in relation to membership of North London Waste Authority (NLWA)

